
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2018



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

( ` in Lakhs )

Notes

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 7,462.73              7,188.80              6,559.34               

(b) Capital work-in-progress 250.06                 276.46                 533.37                  

(c) Intangible assets 4 208.92                 50.12                   80.48                    

(d) Intangible assets under development 99.50                   142.52                 3.00                      

(e) Investments in subsidiaries 5A 38.07                   184.62                 184.62                  

(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5B 4.11                    4.11                     3.65                      

(ii) Loans 6 6.26                    6.26                     6.26                      

(iii) Other financial assets 7 426.04                 93.00                   92.59                    

(g) Non-current tax assets (Net) 14 8.03                    6.73                     69.40                    

(h) Other non-current assets 8 446.90                 480.61                 493.03                  

Total non-current assets 8,950.62              8,433.23              8,025.74               

Current assets

(a) Inventories 9 5,117.88              3,874.59              2,483.78               

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 10 6,863.02              4,462.19              4,338.29               

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,122.68              114.49                 84.49                    

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11A 930.58                 153.71                 68.68                    

(iv) Loans 12 1.09                    1.06                     -                       

(v) Other financial assets 13 22.57                   12.44                   42.12                    

(c) Other current assets 15 2,623.31              882.76                 716.73                  

Total current assets 17,681.12            9,501.24              7,734.09               

TOTAL ASSETS 26,631.75            17,934.47            15,759.83             

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 16 1,770.45              1,770.45              1,770.45               

(b) Other equity 17 15,495.77            8,282.57              7,275.18               

Total equity 17,266.22            10,053.02            9,045.63               

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

  Borrowings 18 335.00                 606.46                 363.34                  

(b) Provisions 19 201.09                 192.45                 143.76                  

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 25 219.70                 272.90                 399.86                  

Total non-current liabilities 755.79                 1,071.81              906.96                  

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 20 2,413.01              3,363.02              2,847.21               

(ii) Trade payables 21 3,885.63              2,708.75              1,793.10               

(iii) Other financial liabilities 22 1,443.14              597.94                 901.37                  

(b) Provisions 24 30.20                   33.74                   35.18                    

(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 26 376.06                 27.98                   154.80                  

(d) Other current liabilities 23 461.70                 78.21                   75.58                    

 Total current liabilities 8,609.74              6,809.64              5,807.24               

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 26,631.75            17,934.47            15,759.83             
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In terms of our report attached 2,501                    

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants  Fermenta Biotech Limited

Rajesh K. Hiranandani Sanjay Buch Satish Varma Krishna Datla

Partner Chairman Managing Director Director

Anupama Datla Desai Gopakumar Nair Amol Lone

Executive Director Director Chief Financial Officer

Varadvinayak Khambete

Company Secretary 

Mumbai, May 15, 2018 Thane, May 15, 2018

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



Fermenta Biotech Limited 100000

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Statement of Profit and Loss  for the year ended March 31, 2018

( ` in Lakhs )

Notes For the year ended  

March 31, 2018

For the year ended  

March 31, 2017

 

Income 

Revenue from operations 27 29,202.00                        16,078.40                     

Other income 28 846.83                             234.33                          

Total income 30,048.83                        16,312.73                     

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 29 8,490.24                          8,187.58                       

Purchases of stock-in-trade 28.80                               22.21                            

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 30 (538.92)                            (1,377.72)                      

Excise duty on sale of goods 30.79                               155.89                          

Employee benefits expense 31 3,405.77                          2,217.66                       

Finance costs 33 299.95                             364.63                          

Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 770.49                             661.58                          

Other expenses 34 8,313.33                          4,809.83                       

Total expenses 20,800.45                        15,041.66                     

Profit before tax 9,248.38                          1,271.07                       

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax [(Refer note 45 (B)] 2,104.43                          349.40                          

(2) Deferred tax [(Refer note 45 (C)] (62.38)                              (112.62)                         

Total tax expense 2,042.05                          236.78                          

Profit for the year 7,206.33                          1,034.29                       

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(a)  (i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan 10.50                               (41.70)                           

(ii) Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plan (3.63)                                14.43                            

(b) (i) Net fair value change in investment in equity instruments through other

         comprehensive income

-                                   0.46                              

 (ii) Income tax relating to fair value change in investments in equity instruments

      through other comprehensive income

-                                   (0.09)                             

Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 6.87                                 (26.90)                           

Total comprehensive income for the year 7,213.20                          1,007.39                       

Earnings per equity share (nominal value per equity share ` 10 each) 37

Basic (in `) 39.61                               5.69                              

Diluted (in `) 39.61                               5.69                              

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-55
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For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants  Fermenta Biotech Limited

Rajesh K. Hiranandani Sanjay Buch   Satish Varma Krishna Datla

Partner Chairman   Managing Director Director

Anupama Datla Desai   Gopakumar Nair Amol Lone

Executive Director   Director Chief Financial Officer

Varadvinayak Khambete

Company Secretary 

Mumbai, May 15, 2018 Thane, May 15, 2018 



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

( ` in Lakhs )

(a) Equity share capital

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

 Balance at the beginning and end of the year 1,770.45           1,770.45             1,770.45             

(b) Other equity

Items of other 

comprehensive 

income

Total

Securities premium 

reserve

Capital redemption 

reserve
General reserve

Equity

instruments

through OCI

Balance as at  April 01, 2016 1,706.46                103.38                        92.32                     5,371.70           1.32                    7,275.18             

Profit for the year -                         -                              -                         1,034.29           -                      1,034.29             

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -                         -                              -                         (27.27)               * 0.37                    (26.90)                

Balance as at  March 31, 2017 1,706.46                103.38                        92.32                     6,378.72           1.69                    8,282.57             

Profit for the  year -                         -                              -                         7,206.33           -                      7,206.33             

Other comprehensive income for the year -                         -                              -                         6.87                  * -                      6.87                    

-                         -                              -                         -                      -                     
Balance as at  March 31, 2018 1,706.46                103.38                        92.32                     13,591.92         1.69                    15,495.77           

*Represents remeasurement of defined benefit plan

(c) Total equity

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Total equity [(a)+(b)] 17,266.22          10,053.02           9,045.63             

See accompanying notes 1-55 to the financial statements
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For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Partner Chairman Managing Director   Director

Anupama Datla Desai Gopakumar Nair Amol Lone

Executive Director   Director Chief Financial Officer

Varadvinayak Khambete

Company Secretary 

Mumbai, May 15, 2018 Thane, May 15, 2018 

Reserves and surplus

Retained earnings



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

( ` in Lakhs )

 Year ended  March 31, 

2018 

 Year ended  March 31, 

2017 

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 9,248.38                          1,271.07                            

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 770.49                             671.43                               

Net unrealised foreign exchange gain (240.69)                            (48.90)                               

Loss / (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) (86.12)                              9.05                                   

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 449.87                             425.54                               

Impairment of non-current investment in a subsidiary 146.55                             -                                    

Finance costs 299.95                             364.58                               

Dividend income (0.24)                                (0.20)                                 

Interest income (32.26)                              (20.65)                               

Operating profit before working capital changes 10,555.93                        2,671.92                            

Movements in working capital :

Increase in trade payables 1,188.37                          953.30                               

Increase in  provisions 57.30                               5.54                                   

Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 1,359.61                          (79.35)                               

Increase in inventories (1,243.29)                         (1,390.81)                          

Increase in trade receivables (2,552.56)                         (575.78)                             

Increase in other assets (2,123.86)                         (149.48)                             

(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (Current and non current) -                                    Cash generated from operations 7,241.51                          1,435.34                            

Income tax paid (Net of refunds) (1,757.64)                         (406.91)                             

Net cash generated by operating activities (A) 5,483.86                          1,028.43                            

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (Including capital work-in-progress,

intangible assets and intangible assets under development) (1,257.91)                         (1,093.89)                          

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 165.97                             1.11                                   

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (Net) (776.87)                            (84.33)                               

Interest received 10.92                               8.74                                   

Dividend received 0.24                                 0.20                                   

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,857.64)                         (1,168.17)                          

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 28.00                               965.85                               

Repayment of borrowings (1,348.48)                         (608.97)                             

Finance costs (297.55)                            (371.38)                             

Net cash used in financing activities (C ) (1,618.03)                         (14.50)                               

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C ) 2,008.19                          (154.24)                             

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents -                                   0.02                                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 114.49                             (1,404.60)                          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,122.68                          (1,558.82)                          

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 3.24                                 6.42                                   

Balances with banks 1,113.30                          108.04                               
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 1,006.14                          0.03                                   

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 11) 2,122.68                          114.49                               

-                                    Cash credit forming part of cash management (Refer note 20) -                                   (1,673.31)                          

Total cash and cash equivalents considered for cash flows 2,122.68                          (1,558.82)                          

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1-55
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Company Secretary 

Mumbai, May 15, 2018 Thane , May 15, 2018 



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1.

2.

2.1

2.2

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Corporate information

Fermenta Biotech Limited ("the Company") is a public company incorporated and domiciled in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at A-

1501 ,Thane One, DIL Complex, Ghodhbunder Road, Majiwade, Thane (West) 400610. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and marketing of chemicals, bulk drugs,

enzymes, pharmaceutical formulations and environmental solution products. The Company caters to both domestic and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first financial statements the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company. The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 in accordance with Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the comparative period data as at and for the year

ended March 31, 2017. Further, the Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2016 (the transition date) in accordance with the Ind AS.

Statement of compliance

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of

whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the

characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for

measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and

measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, which

includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) .

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for: (i) certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period; (ii)

defined benefit plans – plan assets that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note 52 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

Fair Value Measurement

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for

their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Operating cycle

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of

exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that

date. Non- monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non -

monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowing relating to

assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has

determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Borrowing costs 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(e)

(f)

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all the deductible temporary differences to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax consequences that would

follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii) Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,

the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net

basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable

right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority

on the Company.

i) Short term employee benefits:

Employee Benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted 

amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 

benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

i) Current tax:

(2) net interest expenses or income; and

(3) remeasurement

Income Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax

during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date

and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

ii) Long-term employee benefits:

C) Liabilities recognised in respect of other long term employee benefits are actuarially measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the

Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

A) Defined contribution plan: The Company contributes towards state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) and superannuation scheme for

eligible employees. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. Hence payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

B) Defined benefit plans: The employees’ gratuity fund scheme represents defined benefit plans. The cost of providing benefits is determined using projected unit credit method, with

actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of changes to the assets (if applicable)

and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with the charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in

which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is

recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or

asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

(1) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statement of profit and loss in the line item 'Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are

accounted for as past service cost.

Income Tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

ii) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable profit under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of profit and loss

because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The current tax is

calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(g)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

 Estimated useful 

life ( in years ) 

30                          

5-10

5-20

Office equipment (included in plant and equipment) 5-6

3-6

10                          

8                            

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,

for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and

equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use. 

Furniture and fixtures

Asset Category

The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment  are as follows:

Buildings

Lease hold improvements (included in buildings)

Plant and equipment

Computers (included in plant and equipment)

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its tangible property, plant and equipment recognised as of the transition date, measured as 

per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Export Incentive:

Duty free imports of raw materials under Advance License for imports as per the Import and Export Policy are matched with the exports made against the said licenses and net benefit /

obligation is accounted by making suitable adjustments in raw material consumption.

The benefit under the Duty Drawback, Mercantile Export Incentive Scheme and other schemes as per the Import and Export policy in respect of exports made under the said schemes is

included as ‘Export Incentives’ under the head “Other Operating Revenue” in the Statement of profit and loss and is accounted in the year of export.

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated in balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Vehicles

Interest on income tax refund is recognized on receipt of the refund order.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss

arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant

and equipment and is recognised in profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is established which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and capital work-in-progress) less their residual values on straight-line method over their useful

lives as indicated in Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest

income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction flows to the Company in the ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue

can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Company.

Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits, including excise duty, received and receivable by the Company, on its own account. Amounts collected on behalf of third

parties such as sales tax, value added tax and Goods and Services Tax are excluded from revenue. 

Revenue recognition

Sale of Goods:

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are  satisfied :

- the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; and 

- the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactions can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services:

Revenue from services rendered is recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract in the Statement of profit and loss as the underlying services are performed.

Interest and dividend: 



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i)

 Estimated useful 

life ( in years ) 

3-6

3-5

(j) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

(i)

(ii)

Product know how

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined:

in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An Internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the

development phase of an internal project) is recognised if and only if, all the below stated conditions are fulfilled: 

(i) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale; 

(ii) its intention to complete the asset and use or sell it; 

(iii) its ability to use or sell the asset; 

(iv) how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits; 

(v) the availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and 

(vi) the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an

intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in Statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of the transition date, measured as per the previous

GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss as

impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior

years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation is recognised

on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

(a) Intangible assets acquired separately 

Intangible assets

(b)  Internally-generated intangible assets - Research and development expenditure 

The estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Computer softwares

Asset Category

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss if any. When it is not

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs. When a

reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group

of cash-generating units for a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

in the case of a cash generating unit (a Group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the

value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For

this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of

the asset).

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from

other assets or companies of assets.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible assets first meets the recognition criteria

listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible assets can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which

incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as 

intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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(k)

(l) Financial instruments

Financial assets

1

2

3

4

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)

b)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

Debt instrument at FVTPL

Equity Instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if

doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories -

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials and packing materials, work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of

all categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost of raw materials and packing materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-

progress and finished goods comprises direct material, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of

normal operating capacity. Costs of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets are added to the fair value of the financial asset

on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. All

regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that

require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

All equity Instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the

Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument- by-

instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument including foreign exchange gain or loss , excluding dividends, are

recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative

gain or loss within equity.

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other

comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On

derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is

reported as interest income using the EIR method.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income of the Statement of profit and

loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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Derecognition

1)

2) 

(a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

Impairment of financial assets

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

 The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance

sheet) when:

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third

party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This

expected credit loss allowance  is  computed  based on a  provision matrix  which  takes  into  account  historical credit loss experience  and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance

is  recognised in  other  comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over

the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default

occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable

and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash

flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective

interest rate (or credit adjusted effective interest rate for purchase or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flow by considering all contractual terms

of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale,

issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Classification as debts or equity:

Debts and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments:

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company

always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the

risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company

continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement; in that case the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset

and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over

the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised

cost, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial assets, and guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

If the Company measures loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the

credit risks has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss

allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for

that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the

lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if the default occurs within the 12-months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12-months. 
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Financial liabilities:

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Initial recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement:

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial  liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or  when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee 

contracts, issued by the Company, and  commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured  in accordance with the specific accounting 

policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to

which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

 

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the company that are designated by the company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

in profit or loss. 

 

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 49.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities as at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss

incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'Other income' line item. 

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the

credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would

create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit, or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the

fair value of liability is always recognised in profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are

reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts

of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an

asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and

other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt

instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a

substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the

original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.
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(m) Leasing 

(n)

(o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(p) Earnings per share

(q) Cash and cash equivalents:

Investments in equity instruments of  subsidiaries:

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to

accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the company's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with

expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct

costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessor :

The Company as lessee :

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements of the Company. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognized

because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease

payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. 

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the

Company's general policy on borrowing costs [see note 2.(d) above]. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with

expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals

arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction

of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed. 

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the

investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amounts are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition

to Ind AS.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those

cash flows "when the effect of the time value of money is material". 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that

reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

The Company does not have any potential equity shares, and accordingly, the basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are

considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its equity shares 
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(r) Operating segments:

(s) Use of estimates and Judgements 

(t) Recent Accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 115

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is

measured using valuation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets :

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation and amortisation

is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets

are determined by the management at the time when the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience

with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements

in production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset. 

Assets and obligations relating to employee benefit:

The employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the

net cost/ (income) include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact upon the carrying amount of employment benefit

obligations.

Tax expense : [refer note 2(f)]

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, if any, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for

uncertain tax positions. Further, significant judgement is exercised to ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (DTA) that could be recognised based on the probability that future taxable

profits will be available against which DTA can be utilized and amount of temporary difference in which DTA cannot be recognised on want of probable taxable profits.

The standard permits two possible methods of

transition:Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies,

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach) The Company is evaluating the

requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant”

Contingencies (refer note 35)

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“”MCA””) has notified the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the

transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance

consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from April 01, 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect of

adoption of Appendix B to Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant.

Provisions: [refer note 2(o)]

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules”). As per the amended rules, Ind

AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18, “Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing

on or after 1 April 2018. 

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as) an entity

transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature,

amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April

2018.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") of the Company. The CODM is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions

are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular,

information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements is included in the following notes:

Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

Write down in value of inventories: (refer note 9)
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( ` in Lakhs )

3 Property, plant and equipment

Total

Deemed cost as at April 01, 2016 36.04                        2,272.92               4,080.81                   71.06               98.51                    6,559.34               

Additions -                            139.63                  1,110.70                   11.44               -                       1,261.77               

Disposals -                            (7.92)                     (1.05)                         -                   (1.20)                    (10.17)                  

Balance as at March 31, 2017 36.04                        2,404.63               5,190.46                   82.50               97.31                    7,810.94               

Additions -                            420.33                  558.92                      24.71               71.12                    1,075.08               

Disposals (1.74)                         -                        (54.92)                       (1.14)                (37.44)                  (95.24)                  

Balance as at March 31, 2018 34.30                        2,824.96               5,694.46                   106.07             130.99                  8,790.78               

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2016 -                            -                        -                            -                   -                       -                       

Depreciation expense -                            124.27                  458.54                      13.43               25.90                    622.14                  

Balance as at March 31, 2017 -                            124.27                  458.54                      13.43               25.90                    622.14                  

Depreciation expense -                            170.92                  501.14                      14.31               19.54                    705.91                  

Balance as at March 31, 2018 -                            295.19                  959.68                      27.74               45.44                    1,328.05               

Carrying amount

As at April 01, 2016 36.04                        2,272.92               4,080.81                   71.06               98.51                    6,559.34               

As at March 31, 2017 36.04                        2,280.36               4,731.92                   69.07               71.41                    7,188.80               

As at March 31, 2018 34.30                        2,529.77               4,734.78                   78.33               85.55                    7,462.73               

Particulars
Freehold land Buildings Plant and equipment Furniture and 

fixtures

Vehicles
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4 Intangible assets ( ` in Lakhs )

(Other than internally generated)

Particulars Computer softwares Product know -how Total

Deemed cost as at April 01, 2016 37.12                                    43.36                              80.48                                          

Additions 9.08                                      -                                  9.08                                            

Balance as at March 31, 2017 46.20                                    43.36                              89.56                                          

Additions 220.38                                  3.00                                223.38                                        

Balance as at March 31, 2018 266.58                                  46.36                              312.94                                        

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 01, 2016 -                                        -                                  -                                              

Amortisation expense 15.78                                    23.66                              39.44                                          

Balance as at March 31, 2017 15.78                                    23.66                              39.44                                          

Amortisation expense 42.73                                    21.85                              64.58                                          

Eliminated on disposals of assets -                                        -                                  -                                              Balance as at March 31, 2018 58.51                                    45.51                              104.02                                        

Carrying amount

As at April 01, 2016 37.12                                    43.36                              80.48                                          

As at March 31, 2017 30.42                                    19.70                              50.12                                          

As at March 31, 2018 208.07                                  0.85                                208.92                                        
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5 Investments - Unquoted  (Non-current) ( ` in Lakhs )

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

5A Investments in subsidiaries - in equity instruments - Unquoted (Fully paid-up)

 (At cost less impairment in the value of investments, if any)

 G. I. Biotech Private Limited 0.63                     0.63                     0.63                     

6,250 (March 31, 2017: 6,250, April 01, 2016: 6,250) Equity shares of ` 10/- each. (Refer

note 1 below) 

Fermenta Biotech (UK) Limited 183.99                 183.99                 183.99                 

 220,001 (March 31, 2017: 220,001, April 01, 2016: 220,001) Shares of G.B.Pound 1/- 

each. 

 Less:- Impairment in the value of investment (146.55)               -                      -                      

37.44                   183.99                 183.99                 

38.07                   184.62                 184.62                 

5B Investments in equity instrument of other entity (Fully paid-up) (Fair value through OCI)

Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited 4.11                     4.11                     3.65                     

20,000 (March 31, 2017: 20,000, April 01, 2016: 20,000) Equity shares of  ` 10/- each.

4.11                     4.11                     3.65                     

(a) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments before impairment; 188.73                 188.73                 188.27                 

(b) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments; 146.55                 -                      -                      

Notes:

1)

2) These investments are held in the name of the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company had entered into an agreement for transfer of the throat lozenge business along with the trademark

"Astrasept" and the related movable assets for a consideration of ` 8.00 lakhs to its wholly owned subsidiary G.I.Biotech Private Limited (G.I).

Simultaneously, the Company also entered into a share transfer agreement with Ronator Investments Limited (R I), a company incorporated under the

legal provisions of Cyprus, to transfer its entire shareholding in G.I in four instalments to be completed by February 10, 2009 for a total consideration of

USD 4.00 lakhs. In accordance with the share transfer agreement, the Company sold 3750 shares for consideration of USD 1.50 lakhs and recorded a

profit of Rs 70.60 lakhs in the year ended March 2009. The time limit stipulated for completion of the share transfer agreement and completion of

transaction has been extended further to March 31, 2019.

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

( ` in Lakhs )

6    Loans ( Non-current )

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Unsecured, considered good

Loan to a related party 

Loan to G.I. Biotech Private Limited                          6.26                       6.26                     6.26 

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Inter corporate deposit                      267.83                   267.83                 267.83 

Less : provision for doubtful inter corporate deposit                     (267.83)                  (267.83)               (267.83)

                             -                             -                           -   

 Total 6.26                         6.26                      6.26                   

     7  Other financial assets (Non-current) 

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Security and other deposits (Refer note below)                      394.68                     91.82                   78.06 

Assets for defined benefit plan                              -                             -                       3.56 

Others                        31.36                       1.18                   10.97 

 Total 426.04                     93.00                    92.59                 

8    Other non-current assets

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Capital advances                      186.66                   248.63                 250.94 

Unamortised lease premium                      215.97                   225.82                 235.66 

Deferred  rent                        44.27                       6.16                     4.33 

Others                              -                             -                       2.10 

 Total 446.90                     480.61                  493.03               

9    Inventories

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Raw materials and packing materials (includes stock in transit of ` NIL),  (as 

at March 31, 2017 ` 50.82 Lakhs and as at April 01, 2016 ` 78.51 Lakhs ) 

(Refer note 29)

                  1,814.48                1,091.95              1,123.91 

Work-in-progress  (Refer note 30)                   2,225.09                2,281.79              1,045.33 

Finished goods (Refer note 30)                      914.98                   319.36                 178.10 

Stores and spares                      163.33                   181.49                 136.44 

 Total 5,117.88                  3,874.59               2,483.78            

Note : Security and other deposits includes `168.13 Lakhs  (` 15.01 Lakhs as at March 31, 2017 and ` NIL as at April 01, 2016) paid to 

DIL Ltd, holding Company.
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( ` in Lakhs )

10  Trade receivables

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good                   6,863.02                4,462.19              4,338.29 

Unsecured, considered doubtful                   1,029.29                   589.42                 176.06 

                  7,892.30                5,051.61              4,514.35 

  Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (Expected credit loss allowance)                  (1,029.29)                  (589.42)               (176.06)

 Total 6,863.02                  4,462.19               4,338.29            

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year                      589.42                   176.06                 170.67 

Addition during the year                      471.65                   413.36                     5.99 

Reversal during the year                       (31.78)                           -                     (0.60)

Balance at the end of the year 1,029.29                  589.42                  176.06               

11  Cash and cash equivalents

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Balances with banks

In current accounts                   1,113.30                   108.04                   80.82 

In deposit accounts with original maturity for less than 3 months                   1,006.14                       0.03                     0.03 

Cash on hand                          3.24                       6.42                     3.64 

 Total 2,122.68                  114.49                  84.49                 

11A Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Balances with banks 

In deposit accounts with original maturity for more than 3 months but less 

than 12 months* (Refer note below)

                     930.58                   153.71                   68.68 

 Total 930.58                     153.71                  68.68                 

*This includes deposits held under lien by bank against guarantees and other commitments amounting to ` 130.57 Lakhs

 ( `153.71 Lakhs as at March 31, 2017 and ` 68.68 Lakhs as at April 01, 2016)

Note : Trade receivables outstanding includes ` 7.38 Lakhs (` 0.22 Lakh as at March 31, 2017 and ` 9.95 Lakhs as at April 01, 2016)

receivables from DIL Ltd. and ` 6.33 Lakhs ( ` NIL as at March 31, 2017 and ` 4.14 Lakhs as at April 01, 2016) receivables from Dupen

Laboratories Pvt Ltd.
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( ` in Lakhs )

12  Loans (Current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Unsecured, considered good

Others                          1.09                       1.06                         -   

 Total 1.09                         1.06                      -                     

13  Other financial assets (Current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

 Interest accrued but not due from banks on fixed deposits                        22.57                       1.24                     0.42 

 Insurance claim receivable                               -                             -                     39.19 

 Others 

Unsecured, considered good                              -                       11.20                     2.51 

Unsecured, considered doubtful                        10.00                           -                           -   

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances                       (10.00)                           -                           -   

                             -                             -                           -   

 Total 22.57                       12.44                    42.12                 

14  Tax assets (Net) (Non-current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Advance income-tax (Net)                          8.03                       6.73                   69.40 

 Total 8.03                         6.73                      69.40                 

15  Other current assets

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Advance for supply of goods and services

Considered good 178.46                     262.62                  181.20               

Considered doubtful 30.94                       30.94                    18.76                 

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (30.94)                     (30.94)                  (18.76)                

-                          -                       -                     

Deferred rent 14.27                       2.44                      1.35                   

Prepaid expenses 50.81                       60.14                    50.90                 

Unamortised lease premium 9.85                         9.85                      9.85                   

 Travel advances to employees 4.78                         12.77                    13.98                 

Export incentives receivable 838.95                     326.30                  216.67               

Balances with government authorities 1,526.19                  208.64                  242.78               

 Total 2,623.31                  882.76                  716.73               
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16  Equity share capital ( ` in Lakhs )

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at

 March 31, 2017 

 As at

April 01, 2016

Authorised 

1,901.00                     1,901.00                           1,901.00                     

99.00                          99.00                                99.00                          

2,000.00                     2,000.00                           2,000.00                     

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital

1,819.28                     1,819.28                           1,819.28                     

(48.83)                        (48.83)                               (48.83)                         

1,770.45                     1,770.45                           1,770.45                     

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

No. of  Equity Shares ` In  Lakhs No. of  Equity Shares ` In  Lakhs No of  Equity Shares ` In  Lakhs

At the beginning of the year 1,81,92,844 1,819.28                         1,81,92,844 1,819.28                     1,81,92,844 1,819.28                     

At the end of the year 1,81,92,844 1,819.28                         1,81,92,844 1,819.28                     1,81,92,844 1,819.28                     

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5%  equity shares in the Company

Name of the shareholders

No. of  Equity Shares % Holding No. of  Equity Shares % Holding No. of  Equity Shares % Holding

1,65,92,536                        91.20% 1,27,62,464                        70.15% 1,27,62,464                      70.15%

-                                      -                                  38,30,072                           21.05% 38,30,072                         21.05%

Less: 4,88,334 (March 31, 2017- 4,88,334, April 01, 2016- 4,88,334) Equity shares held by FBL ESOP 

Trust [Refer note (e)  below]

Evolvence India Life Sciences Fund LLC

DIL Limited

19,010,000 (March 31, 2017- 19,010,000, April 01, 2016- 19,010,000) Equity shares of  ` 10 each

990,000 (March 31, 2017- 990,000, April 01, 2016- 990,000) Preference shares of  ` 10 each 

18,192,844 (March 31, 2017- 18,192,844 , April 01, 2016- 18,192,844) Equity shares of ` 10 each 

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016

As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016
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16  Equity share capital ( ` in Lakhs )

(c) Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company 

Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company and ultimate holding company are as below:

Name of the shareholders

No. of  Equity Shares ` In  Lakhs No. of  Equity Shares ` In  Lakhs No. of  Equity Shares ` In  Lakhs

DIL Limited, the holding company 1,65,92,536                        1,659.25                         1,27,62,464                        1,276.25                     1,27,62,464                      1,276.25                     

DVK Investments Pvt. Ltd., the ultimate holding company 87,024                                8.70                                87,024                                8.70                            87,024                              8.70                            

(d) Rights, preference and restrictions

(e) Shares issued to FBL ESOP Trust :

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

4,88,334

4,88,334

4,88,334

4,88,334

4,88,334

4,88,334

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

During the year ended March 31, 2011, pursuant to approval from shareholders, the Company has allotted 488,334 equity shares at face value of ` 10 each per share against cash to FBL ESOP Trust pending implementation of ESOP plan. The equity shares issued are 

held by FBL ESOP Trust.

As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016

No. of  Equity Shares No. of  Equity Shares

As at March 31, 2018

No. of  Equity Shares

The Company has issued  only one class of shares, namely, equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend if any, proposed by the 

Board of Directors is subject to shareholders' approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016
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17 Other equity ( ` in Lakhs )

Total

Securities 

premium 

reserve

Capital 

redemption 

reserve

General reserve

Equity

instruments

through OCI

Balance as at  April 01, 2016 1,706.46            103.38               92.32                  5,371.70         1.32                  7,275.18           

Profit for the year -                     -                     -                     1,034.29         -                   1,034.29           

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -                     -                     -                     (27.27)             * 0.37                  (26.90)               

Balance as at  March 31, 2017 1,706.46            103.38               92.32                  6,378.72         1.69                  8,282.57           

Profit for the  year -                     -                     -                     7,206.33         -                   7,206.33           

Other comprehensive income for the year -                     -                     -                     6.87                * -                   6.87                  

Balance as at  March 31, 2018 1,706.46            103.38               92.32                  13,591.92       1.69                  15,495.77         

*Represents remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

Capital redemption reserve : This reserve was created for redemption of preference shares in the financial year 2004-2005 amounting to ` 33.38 lakhs and in the financial year 2010-

2011 ` 70.00 lakhs.

Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. These reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings: Profits generated by the Company that are not distributed to shareholders as dividends but are reinvested in the business.

General reserve: General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer  of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - This represents the cumulative gains / losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income, under an irrevocable option.

Items of other 

comprehensive 

income

Reserves and Surplus

Retained 

earnings
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18 Borrowings (Non-current)

 Non-current   Current  Non-current   Current  Non-current   Current 

Secured 

Term Loans

From Banks 

For Dahej facility [Refer notes below (a) and (b)] 269.04               200.00         472.62                222.19         295.57             466.67       

For R & D Thane / registered office [Refer note below (c)] 47.31                 75.00           123.68                75.00          30.36               75.00         

For Vehicle [Refer note below (d)] 18.65                 5.68             0.65                    6.77            7.06                 8.68           

From others

For Dahej facility [Refer note below (e )] -                     -               -                      -              -                  33.49         

For R & D Thane [Refer note below (e )] 9.51             9.51                    26.09          30.11               22.75         

For Vehicle [Refer note below (d)] -                     0.22            0.24                 2.38           

335.00               290.19         606.46                330.27         363.34             608.97       

Amount included under the head "Other financial liabilities" (Refer note 

22)

-                     (290.19)        -                      (330.27)       -                  (608.97)      

 Total 335.00               -               606.46                -              363.34             -             

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

19 Provisions (Non-current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Provisions for employee benefits:

 Gratuity [Refer note 39 (c)] 36.09                 25.18                  -                  

Compensated absences 165.00               167.27                143.76             

 Total 201.09               192.45                143.76             

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

( ` in Lakhs )

Term loan for setting up a new facility at Dahej SEZ is taken from Union Bank of India with interest rates (BR + 4%) ranging from 13.30% to 13.60% repayable in 60

equal monthly instalments. The said term loan is secured by way of first charge on fixed assets procured with financial assistance of the said term loan and by equitable

mortgage of factory land and building at Dahej and Kullu.

Term loan for expansion of Dahej facility is taken from Union Bank of India with interest rate MCLR + 2.15% (effective rate 10.55%) repayable in 48 equal monthly

instalments. The said term loan is secured by way of first charge on fixed assets procured with the financial assistance of the term loan and by equitable mortgage of factory

land and building at Dahej and Kullu.

Term loan for relocation of R & D units / registered office is taken from Union Bank of India with interest rate MCLR + 2.15% (effective rate 10.55%) repayable in 48

equal monthly instalments. The said term loan is secured by way of first charge on fixed assets procured with the financial assistance of the term loan and by equitable

mortgage of factory land and building of Dahej and Kullu.

Vehicle loans are taken from the Banks and Financial Institutions against hypothecation of the vehicles purchased, repayable in monthly instalments ranging between 36 to 

60 months with interest rates ranging from 10% to 14%.

Term loans from financial institutions (secured) for financing the purchase of plant and machinery at Dahej SEZ and R & D Thane are taken from Siemens Financial

Services Private Limited at interest rates of 13.75%, repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments. The said term loans are secured by way of  first charge on plant and

machinery procured with financial assistance of the said term loan.
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( ` in Lakhs )

20 Borrowings (Current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

(a) Loans repayable on demand

From Banks (Secured)

Cash credit -                     1,673.31             1,489.09          

Packing and post shipment credit 2,128.09            1,132.00             1,200.62          

Buyers credit 284.92               188.85                -                  

From Bank (Unsecured)

Buyers credit -                     368.86                -                  

(b) Loans from related parties - holding company (Unsecured) -                     -                      157.50             

Total 2,413.01            3,363.02             2,847.21          

21 Trade payables (Current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer note 44)

38.33                 20.20                  5.14                 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises 3,847.30            2,688.55             1,787.96          

 Total 3,885.63            2,708.75             1,793.10          

22 Other financial liabilities (Current) 

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 18) 290.19               330.27                608.97             

Payable to the employees / directors 1,084.39            105.42                183.85             

Liability for capital expenditure 65.01                 155.84                98.60               

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.55                   2.60                    6.14                 

Others 3.00                   3.81                    3.81                 

 Total 1,443.14            597.94                901.37             

Packing credit, post shipment credit, cash credit and buyers credit are from Union Bank of India and are secured against hypothecation of the Company's entire stocks of

raw materials, semi-finished, and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other moveable assets including book-debts, bills, whether documentary or clean,

outstanding monies, receivables, and also by way of first charge on all of the Company's fixed assets both present and future. The packing credit, cash credit and buyers

credit are repayable on demand. The interest rate for preshipment credit in foreign currency is (MCLR+1.4%, effective rate 10.55%) and interest rate for export credit in

rupee and cash credit is (MCLR+2.5%, effective rate 10.55%)

Buyers credit is taken from DBS Bank secured by lien on the deposit of  ` 100 Lakhs. The interest rate is (LIBOR+1.65%)

Term loan from holding company includes: 

Short term loan of ` NIL ( March 31, 2017 ` NIL , April 01, 2016  - ` 157.50 Lakhs) carrying interest @ 8% to 12% p.a., repayable on demand
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( ` in Lakhs )

23 Other current liabilities

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Advances from customers 97.65                 35.24                  29.27               

Statutory dues 271.76               42.97                  46.31               

Others 92.29                 -                      -                  

 Total 461.70               78.21                  75.58               

24 Provisions  (Current)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Provision for compensated absences 30.20                 33.74                  35.18               

 Total 30.20                 33.74                  35.18               

25 Deferred tax liabilities  (Net)

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between written

down value as per books of accounts and income tax

740.88               651.88                600.27             

Fair value and other timing adjustments 5.97                   0.42                    0.33                 

Total deferred tax liabilities 746.85               652.30                600.60             

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 459.62               307.39                150.11             

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 67.53                 72.01                  50.63               

Total deferred tax assets 527.15               379.40                200.74             

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 219.70               272.90                399.86             

26 Current tax liabilities (Net)

Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Provision for income tax  (Net) 376.06               27.98                  154.80             

376.06               27.98                  154.80             
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27  Revenue from operations

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Sale of products  (Including excise duty) 28,316.10                           15,725.13                        

Sale of services 22.43                                  5.76                                 

Other operating revenues

Scrap sales 11.15                                  5.86                                 

Export incentive 852.32                                341.65                             

Total 29,202.00                           16,078.40                        

28  Other income

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Bank deposits 25.19                                  8.73                                 

Other financial assets 3.32                                    1.97                                 

Others 3.75                                    14.81                               

32.26                                  25.51                               

Dividend income on investment in equity instruments designated as at fair value

through other comprehensive income 0.24                                    0.20                                 

Foreign exchange gain (Net) 427.19                                206.68                             

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 86.12                                  -                                   

Entry tax refund 280.25                                -                                   

Miscellaneous income 20.77                                  1.94                                 

Total 846.83                                234.33                             

29  Cost of materials consumed

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Inventories of raw materials / packing materials at the beginning of the year 1,091.95                             1,123.91                          

Add : Purchases 9,212.77                             8,155.62                          

Less : Inventories of raw materials / packing materials at the end of the year 1,814.48                             1,091.95                          

Total 8,490.24                             8,187.58                          
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30  Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Inventory at the end of the year 

Work-in-progress 2,225.09                             2,281.79                          

Finished goods 914.98                                319.36                             

                              3,140.07                           2,601.15 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work-in-progress 2,281.79                             1,045.33                          

Finished goods 319.36                                178.10                             

                              2,601.15                           1,223.43 

                               (538.92)                          (1,377.72)

31  Employee benefits expense

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Salaries, wages and bonus 2,964.32                             1,824.42                          

Contribution to provident and other funds 114.42                                102.28                             

Gratuity expense 55.51                                  14.91                               

Staff welfare expenses 271.52                                276.05                             

Total 3,405.77                             2,217.66                          

32  Depreciation and amortisation expense

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 705.91                                622.14                             

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 64.58                                  39.44                               

Total 770.49                                661.58                             

33  Finance costs

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Interest on

Term loans 87.20                                  98.38                               

Working capital 150.49                                234.97                             

Short term loan from the holding company -                                      5.96                                 

Others 62.26                                  25.32                               

Total 299.95                                364.63                             
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34  Other expenses

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 

Manufacturing expenses

Excise duty / GST other than recovered on sales 61.11                                  10.59                               

Labour charges 339.92                                302.94                             

Power, fuel and gas 848.40                                775.37                             

Processing charges 735.27                                595.31                             

Repairs to buildings 52.28                                  43.65                               

Repairs to machinery 102.45                                76.20                               

Stores and spare parts consumed 839.70                                638.56                             

Water charges 16.46                                  13.00                               

2,995.59                             2,455.62                          

Selling and distribution expenses

Advertising and sales promotions 252.93                                103.09                             

Freight and forwarding charges 398.93                                294.31                             

Commission on sales 2,022.99                             126.86                             

2,674.85                             524.26                             

Administration and other expenses    

Rent 198.62                                133.41                             

Repairs and maintenance - others 225.55                                200.65                             

Insurance 93.17                                  73.90                               

Rates and taxes 93.15                                  79.81                               

Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 449.87                                425.54                             

Impairment of non-current investment in equity instrument of  a subsidiary 146.55                                -                                   

Directors sitting fees 5.45                                    2.00                                 

Travelling and conveyance 398.53                                332.39                             

Professional and legal fees 581.84                                215.55                             

Payment to auditors (Refer note 36) 25.97                                  27.18                               

Postage and telephone 40.34                                  35.77                               

Printing and stationery 34.22                                  69.53                               

Staff recruitment expenses 19.65                                  28.51                               

Bank charges 51.69                                  47.48                               

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) -                                      9.05                                 

Donations 7.81                                    8.08                                 

Corporate social responsibility expenses 22.31                                  8.29                                 

Miscellaneous expenses 248.17                                132.81                             

2,642.89                             1,829.95                          

Total 8,313.33                             4,809.83                          
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35    Commitments and contingent liabilities

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (Net of advances) 1.57                       296.46                       526.52                         

Contingent liabilities:

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

a) Tax matters   

Excise duty - matter under appeal -                         -                             8.00                             

Sales tax - matter under appeal (including interest and penalty) 20.14                     -                             -                               

b) Other claims (Legal claim not accepted by the Company) -                         94.26                         54.99                           

36    Payment to auditors excluding statutory levy 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

For audit 14.00                         13.00                           

For tax audit 3.00                            4.60                             

For limited review 8.50                            7.50                             

For other services 0.26                            0.50                             

Reimbursement of expenses 0.21                            1.58                             

                     *   25.97                        #   27.18 

* Includes ` 2.50 Lakhs in respect of payment to predecessor auditors.

# Includes ` 4.60 Lakhs in respect of payment to other than the predecessor auditors 

37    Earnings per share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share :

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

Profit for the year used for computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (` in Lakhs) 7,206.33                    1,034.29                      

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic and diluted EPS 1,81,92,844               1,81,92,844

                          39.61                               5.69 

                          39.61                               5.69 

38    Operating leases

Particulars  For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

a) Lease payments recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 198.62                       133.41                         

Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

b) Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable leases in the aggregate and for each of the 

following period are as below:                   

(i) Not later than one year 400.85                   94.67                         94.67                           

(ii) Later than one year and not later than five years 1,327.74                122.59                       122.59                         

(iii) More than five years -                         -                             -                               

1,728.59                217.26                       217.26                         

The Company has obtained certain premises for its business operations under operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are generally non-cancellable and

periods range between 11 months to 5 years under leave and licence / lease and are renewable by mutual consent and on mutually agreeable terms.

Basic earnings per equity share [nominal value of share ` 10 (March 31, 2017: ` 10)]

Diluted earnings per equity share [nominal value of share ` 10 (March 31, 2017: ` 10)]
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39 Employee benefits ( ` in Lakhs )

The Company operates following employee benefit plans

(I) Defined contribution plans: Provident fund, superannuation fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC)

(II) Defined benefit plan: Gratuity (funded) 

(III) Other long term benefit plan: Long term compensated absences (unfunded)

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

I) Defined contribution plan

Employer's contribution to provident fund 106.61                           101.06                           

Employer's contribution to superannuation fund 0.91                               1.18                               

Employer's contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI) 6.88                                                                  -   

Employer's contribution to labour welfare fund 0.02                                                              0.04 

II) Defined benefit plan

(a) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

Opening defined benefit obligation 214.63                           157.80                           

Interest cost 13.49                             11.09                             

Current service cost 29.27                             19.77                             

Past service cost 25.18                             -                                

Benefits paid (21.86)                           (21.54)                           

Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligations - due to changes in financial assumptions (14.01)                           38.32                             

Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligations - due to changes in experience adjustment (3.68)                             9.19                               

Closing defined benefit obligation                            243.02                            214.63 

(b) Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

Opening fair value of plan assets 189.45 161.45                           

Employer's contributions 34.09                             27.78                             

Interest income 12.43                             12.16                             

Remeasurement gain / (loss) :

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (7.18)                             9.60                               

Benefit paid (21.86)                           (21.54)                           

Closing fair value of plan assets 206.93 189.45

The Company operates a defined benefit plan, viz., gratuity.

In respect of Gratuity, a defined benefit plan, contributions are made to LIC’s Recognised Group Gratuity Fund Scheme. It is governed by the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the employment on

completion of five years or death while in employment. The level of benefit provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at the time of

retirement/termination. Provision for Gratuity is based on actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary as at the year end. Each year, the Company

reviews the level of funding in gratuity fund. 

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees of the Company. The contribution to defined contribution

plan, recognised as expenses in the Statement of profit and loss for the year is as under (Refer note 31).
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c) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation:

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Fair value of plan assets 206.93                             189.45                           161.36                           

Present value of defined benefit obligation 243.02                             214.63                           157.80                           

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet surplus/(deficit) (36.09)                              (25.18)                           3.56                               

d) The amount recognised in Statement of profit or loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

For the year ended  

March 31, 2018

For the year ended  

March 31, 2017

Current service cost 29.27                             19.77                             

Past service cost 25.18                             -                                

Net interest expense / (income) 1.06                               (4.86)                             

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of profit and loss 55.51                             14.91                             

e) The amount recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan is as follows:

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefits liability:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (7.19)                             9.60                               

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 14.01                             (42.11)                           

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience adjustments 3.68                               (9.19)                             

Components of defined benefit recognised as income / (expense) in other comprehensive income 10.50                             (41.70)                           

f) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Discount rate (per annum) 7.75% 7.00% 7.85%

Salary escalation rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00% 5.00%

Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Mortality rate during employment (per annum)

Mortality rate after employment (per annum) 21-30 years - 10%         21-30 years - 10%         21-30 years - 10%         

31-40 years - 5% 31-40 years - 5% 31-40 years - 5%

41-50 years - 3% 41-50 years - 3% 41-50 years - 3%

Above 50 years - 2% Above 50 years - 2% Above 50 years - 2%

The expected contributions for defined benefit plan for the next financial year will be in line with financial year 2017-18.

Indian Assured lives Mortality (2006-08)

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors 

including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

The expected rate of return on plan assets is considered as per declaration from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) .

The amount included in the financial statements arising from the Company's obligation in respect of its defined benefit obligation plan is as

follows:
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g) Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

1st following year 51.56                      43.79                             

2nd following year 15.24                      7.43                               

3rd following year 12.43                      13.45                             

4th following year 17.57                      10.69                             

5th following year 37.17                      14.39                             

6th following year 22.13                      32.55                             

7th following year 12.89                      25.16                             

8th following year 19.78                      10.58                             

9th following year 29.99                      17.12                             

10th and above 294.43                    263.62                           

h) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: 

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Insurer managed funds 100% 96% 99%

Others -                                   4% 1%

100% 100% 100%

i) Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate (- 0.50%) 

Discount rate (+ 0.50%) 

Salary escalation rate (- 0.50%) 

Salary escalation rate (+ 0.50%) 

*'DBO: Defined benefit obligations

III) Other long term benefit plan

3.29%

-3.09%

 For the year ended  March 31, 2017

(Decrease)/increase in DBO* 

 For the year ended  March 31, 2018

(Decrease)/increase in DBO* 

Significant actuarial assumptions for determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and employee turnover. The

sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of year, while holding all other

assumptions constant. The result of sensitivity analysis is given below:

This plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

4.16%

-3.87%

-3.45%

3.57%

3.77%

-3.52%

Investment risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields on

government bonds denominated in Indian rupees. If the actual return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. However, the risk is

mitigated by investment in LIC managed fund.

Interest rate risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on

the plan's investments.

Longevity risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants

both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. 

Salary risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase

in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Actuarial valuation for compensated absences is done as at the year end and the provision is made as per Company rules with corresponding charge to the

Statement of profit and loss amounting to ` 23.52 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 49.38 Lakhs) and it covers all regular employees. Major drivers in actuarial

assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. 
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A) Names of the related parties and related party relationships

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016


a) Names of the related parties where control exists and description of relationships

(i) Holding Company:

 DIL Limited India 91.20% 70.15% 70.15%

(ii) Subsidiaries:

a)  Fermenta Biotech (UK) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100% 100%

b)  G.I. Biotech Pvt Limited India 62.50% 62.50% 62.50%

b) Names of the related parties where there are transactions and description of relationships:

(i) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Satish Varma

Ms. Anupama Datla Desai

Mr. Sanjay Buch

Mr. Gopakumar Nair

Mr. Prashant Nagre

Mr. Amol Lone - (w.e.f.  June 01, 2017) 

Mr. Kapil Gohil - (up to  May 31, 2017) 

Mr. Sanjy Basantani -(up to February 08, 2017) 

Mr. Varadvinayak Khambete -(w.e.f. February 27, 2017) 

An individual directly controlling the holding company, namely, DIL limited and can exercise significant influence 

Mr. Krishna Datla

(ii) Enterprises owned or under significant influence of key management personnel or their relatives:

Dupen Laboratories Pvt Limited.

Lacto Cosmetics (Vapi) Pvt. Limited.

Non-Executive Director

Proportion of ownership interest as at Country of 

Incorporation 

 Designation  

Managing Director

Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary
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B) Related party transactions:

Sr.No. Refer A (a) (i) 

above

Refer A (b) (i) 

above

Refer A (b) (ii) 

above

    

1 Sale of products (including excise duty)

Dupen Laboratories Pvt Ltd. -                        -                        12.15                      

( - ) ( - ) ( - )

2 Sale of services

DIL Ltd. 5.50                      -                        -                          
( - ) ( - ) ( - )

3 Purchase of raw materials, packing material and spares

Dupen Laboratories Pvt Limited. -                          

-                        -                        (9.49)

Lacto Cosmetics (Vapi) Pvt. Ltd. -                        -                        2.16                        

( - ) ( - ) (5.54)

4 Interest on loan taken 

DIL Ltd. -                        -                        -                          

(5.96)                     ( - ) ( - )

5 Rent expenses

DIL Ltd. 129.97                   -                        -                          

(53.20)                   ( - ) ( - )

6 Processing charges 

Lacto Cosmetics (Vapi) Pvt. Ltd. -                        -                        10.36                      

( - ) ( - ) (10.66)

7 Company's share of expenses paid

DIL Ltd. 14.01                     -                        -                          

(26.07)                   ( - ) ( - )

8 Maintenance charges

DIL Ltd. 26.32                     -                        -                          

(7.49)                     ( - ) ( - )

9 Other reimbursements received 

DIL Ltd. 0.91                      -                        -                          

(0.76)                     ( - ) ( - )

Lacto Cosmetics (Vapi) Pvt. Ltd. -                        -                        2.72

( - ) ( - ) ( - )

10 Loan repaid 

DIL Ltd. -                        -                        -                          

(157.50)                 ( - ) ( - )

11 Deposit given

DIL Ltd. 153.12                   -                        -                          

(15.01)                   ( - ) ( - )

12 Remuneration to key management personnel*

Mr. Satish Varma 501.85                   

(74.43)                   

Ms. Anupama Datla Desai 272.01                   

(58.55)                   

Mr. Prashant Nagre 240.21                   

(89.16)                   

Mr. Amol Lone 40.97                     
( - )

Mr. Kapil Gohil 5.53                      

(39.31)                   

Mr. Varadvinayak Khambete 10.05                     

(0.91)                     

Mr. Sanjay Basantani -                        

(16.45)                   

13 Directors' sitting fees (excluding statutory levy) 5.45                      

(0.85)                     

14 Commission to non-executive directors (excluding statutory levy)

Mr. Sanjay Buch 10.77                     

( - )

Mr. Gopakumar Nair 10.77                     

( - )

Mr. Krishna Datla 86.19                     

( - )

(Figures in brackets are the corresponding figures in respect of the previous year.)

Particulars

* Note: The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the

company as a whole.
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C) Balance outstanding as at the end of the year :

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

a.  Loan taken

Holding company

DIL Ltd. -                        -                        157.50

b.  Trade Payables

Holding company

DIL Ltd. 6.76 3.08 3.24

Enterprises under significant influence of  key  management personnel or their 

relatives

Lacto Cosmetics (Vapi) Pvt. Ltd. 4.98 3.18 4.23

Dupen Laboratories Pvt Ltd -                        3.50 8.58                        

c. Other financial liabilities (Payable to directors and others)

Key management personnel

Mr.Satish Varma 430.93 -                        23.33                      

Ms. Anupama Datla Desai 215.46 -                        23.33                      

Mr.Sanjay Buch 10.77 -                        -                          

Mr. Gopakumar Nair 10.77                     -                        -                          

Mr.Prashant Nagre 151.74 7.91                      14.39                      

Mr.Amol Lone 8.66 -                        -                          

Mr.Kapil Gohil -                        1.65 3.00                        

Mr.Sanjay Basantani -                        -                        1.60

Mr. Krishna Datla 86.19 -                        -                          

Holding company

DIL Ltd. -                        -                        2.83

c. Loans (Non Current)

Subsidiaries

G.I.Biotech Pvt Ltd. 6.26 6.26 6.26

d. Trade receivables

Holding company

DIL Ltd. 7.38 0.22                      9.95                        

Enterprises under significant influence of  key  management personnel or their 

relatives

Dupen Laboratories Pvt Ltd. 6.33 -                        4.14                        

e. Other financial assets (deposit given)

Holding company

DIL Ltd. 168.13 15.01 -                          
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41 Research and development expenditure

42

43 Details of CSR expenditure

For the year ended  March 31, 2018

        Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 23.13                          

Particulars
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total In cash

Yet to be paid in 

cash
Total

(a)  Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2018:

i)       Construction/acquisition of any asset 22.31                     -                              22.31                 -                         -                             -                      

ii)     On purposes other than (i) above -                         -                              -                    -                         -                             -                      

(b)  Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2017:

i)      Construction/acquisition of any asset -                         -                              -                    -                         -                             -                      

ii)     On purposes other than (i) above -                         -                              -                    8.29                       -                             8.29                     

44 Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

As at 

April 01, 2016

a 38.33                     20.20                         5.14                     

(ii) Interest due on above 0.33                       0.57                           0.10                     

The Total of (i) and (ii) 38.66                     20.77                         5.24                     

b -                         -                             -                      

c -                         -                             -                      

d -                         -                             -                      

e -                         -                             -                      

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the research and development expenditure of ` 584.73 Lakhs (Previous year - ` 507.74 Lakhs) (excluding interest and depreciation) has been charged to the statement of

profit and loss. The capital expenditure in the current year on research and development amounts to ` 91.60 Lakhs (Previous year  - ` 195.65 Lakhs).

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting

year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting

year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payments

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without

adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting year 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

For the year ended  March 31, 2017

19.35                                                                                           

The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by 

the auditors.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, commission aggregating ` 646.39 Lakhs (Previous year - NIL) to Executive and Managing Director and aggregating ` 107.73 Lakhs (Previous year - NIL) to the non-

executive directors has been provided in the financial Statements.



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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A

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

Current tax:

- For the year                         2,104.43                             349.40 

Deferred tax credit                             (62.38)                           (112.62)

                        2,042.05                             236.78 

Tax expenses/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income                                3.63                             (14.34)

Tax expense                         2,045.69                             222.44 

B

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

March 31, 2017 

Profit before tax                         9,248.38                          1,271.07 

Enacted income tax rate in India (%) #                            34.608                             34.608 

Income tax expense calculated at enacted income tax rate                         3,200.68                             439.89 

Effect of tax on:

- non deductible expenses                              10.42                                 5.67 

- incremental deduction allowed on account of research and 

development costs

                          (120.25)                           (109.15)

- income exempted from tax                        (1,918.58)                           (100.62)

                           869.78                                 0.99 

Total income tax expense                         2,042.05                             236.78 

Tax expenses recognised in profit and loss                         2,042.05                             236.78 

Tax expenses/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income                                3.63                             (14.34)

Total tax expense                         2,045.68                             222.44 

C

Particulars As at 

April 01, 2017

 Statement of profit 

and loss 
 Other comprehensive 

income 

As at 

March 31, 2018

(i) Components of dederred tax liabilities (Net)

Dederred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between written down

value as per books of accounts and income tax

                             651.88 89.00                             -                                                            740.88 

Dederred tax assets

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis                              (72.01) 0.85                               3.63                                                           (67.53)

Allowance for doubtful debts and advances                            (307.39) (152.23)                         -                                                          (459.62)

Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments in equity instruments 

measured at FVTOCI

                                 0.42 -                                -                                                                0.42 

Others                                      -   -                                -                                                                5.55 

Deferred tax (benefit)/expense                             (62.38)                                3.63 

Net deferred tax liabilities                              272.90                             219.70 

Particulars As at 

April 01, 2016

 Statement of profit 

and loss 
 Other comprehensive 

income 

As at 

March 31, 2017

(i) Components of dederred tax liabilities (Net)

Dederred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between written down

value as per books of accounts and income tax

600.27                            51.61                                                                -                               651.88 

Dederred tax assets

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis (50.63)                             (6.95)                                                         (14.43)                             (72.01)

Allowance for doubtful debts and advances (150.11)                           (157.28)                                                            -                             (307.39)

Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments in equity instruments 

measured at FVTOCI

0.33                                -                                                               0.09                                 0.42 

Deferred tax (benefit)/expense                           (112.62)                             (14.34)

Net deferred tax liabilities                              399.86                             272.90 

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 34.608% at which the Company is liable to pay tax on taxable income under the Indian tax Laws.

The major components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) arising on account of temporary differences are as follows:

Differential tax effect due to effective tax rate difference

For the year ended  March 31, 2018

For the year ended  March 31, 2017

Particulars

A reconciliation of  income tax expense to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit before income tax is summarised below:

Particulars

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss

Tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and other comprehenshive income consists of:



Fermenta Biotech Limited

CIN : U99999MH1986PLC134021

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

( ` in Lakhs )

46  Categories of the financial instruments 

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

a) Financial assets 

Financial assets measured at fair value through Other comprehensive income

Investments in equity instruments -Unquoted                                     4.11 4.11                                 3.65                              

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

                                    7.35 7.32                                 6.26                              

                                394.68 91.82                               78.06                            

                                       -   -                                   3.56                              

31.36                                 12.38                               13.48                            

                                  22.57                                   1.24                               0.42 

                                       -                                         -                               39.19 

                             6,863.02 4,462.19                          4,338.29                       

                             2,122.68 114.49                             84.49                            

                                930.58 153.71                             68.68                            

Total Financial assets 10,376.35                          4,847.26                          4,636.08                       

b)

(i) Borrowings                              3,038.20                            4,299.75                        3,819.52 

(ii) Trade payables                              3,885.63                            2,708.75                        1,793.10 

                             1,084.39                               105.42                           183.85 

                                  65.01                               155.84                             98.60 

                                    0.55                                   2.60                               6.14 

                                    3.00                                   3.81                               3.81 

Total  Financial liabilities 8,076.78                            7,276.17                          5,905.02                       

47  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

 As at 

March 31, 2018 

 As at 

March 31, 2017 

 As at 

April 01, 2016 

Opening balance                                     4.11 3.65                                 3.65                              

Total gains or losses

recognised through other comprehensive income                                        -   0.46                                 -                               

Closing balance 4.11                                   4.11                                 3.65                              

Particulars

Particulars

(ix) Bank balances other than (viii) above

(i)  Loans

(ii) Security and other deposits

(iii) Assets for defined benefit plan

(iv) Others

(v) Interest accrued but not due from banks on fixed deposits

(vi) Insurance claim receivable 

(v) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

(vi) Others

(vii) Trade receivables

(viii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Liability for capital expenditure

(iii) Payable to the employees / directors

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
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48  Segments reporting 

A

The above business segments have been identified considering :

a) the nature of products and services

b) the differing risks and returns

c) the internal organisation and management structure, and

d) the internal financial reporting systems.

B

Segments
For the year ended  

March 31, 2018

For the year ended  

March 31, 2017

India                         5,787.40                        4,138.73 

Europe 15,063.55                                            9,093.69 

Others                         8,351.05                        2,845.98 

TOTAL                       29,202.00                      16,078.40 

C Segment assets to the extent specifically relating to the respective segments and unallocable assets

As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade Receivables

India 1,408.91                       1,088.36                       

Europe 2,620.63                                              2,386.29 

Others                         2,833.48                           987.54 

                        6,863.02 4,462.19                       

Other assets (Unallocable)

                      19,768.73                      13,472.29 
TOTAL                       26,631.75                      17,934.47 

Particulars 

Description of segments and principal activities

The Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") of the Company.The

Managing director of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief

operating decision maker. The ("CODM") of Company on the basis of has  identified reportable segments are as follow: 

1. India.

2. Europe

3. Others

The segment information presented is in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing the financial statements of the Company.

Segment revenue from external customers, based on geographical location of customers (Sales)

The company's operating facilities are located in India. Most of the assets are not identifiable separately to any reportable segment as these are used interchangeably

between segments. In view of the interwoven / intermix nature of business and manufacturing facility, other segmental information is not ascertainable.
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49 Fair value

( ` in Lakhs )

March , 2018 March 31, 2017  April 01, 2016 March , 2018 March 31, 2017  April 01, 2016

Financial assets 

Loans 7.35                          7.32                        6.26                           7.35                       7.32                            6.26                     

Other financial assets 448.61                      105.44                    134.71                       448.61                   105.44                        134.71                 

Trade receivables 6,863.02                   4,462.19                 4,338.29                    6,863.02                4,462.19                     4,338.29              

Cash and cash equivalents 2,122.68                   114.49                    84.49                         2,122.68                114.49                        84.49                   

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 930.58                      153.71                    68.68                         930.58                   153.71                        68.68                   

Total assets 10,372.24                 4,843.15                 4,632.43                    10,372.24              4,843.15                     4,632.44              

Financial liabilities 

 Trade and other payables                     3,885.63                  2,708.75                     1,793.10 3,885.63                2,708.75                     1,793.10              

 Borrowings                     3,038.20                  4,299.75                     3,819.52 3,038.20                4,299.75                     3,819.52              

Other financial liabilities                     1,152.95                     267.67                        292.40 1,152.95                267.67                        292.40                 

Total liabilities 8,076.78                   7,276.17                 5,905.02                    8,076.78                7,276.17                     5,905.02              

The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at cost and other investments measured at fair value through OCI. 

Fair value hierarchy  ( ` in Lakhs )

Fair Value 

Fair value 

hierarchy Fair Value 

Fair value 

hierarchy Fair Value 

Fair value 

hierarchy

Financial assets measured at fair value through Other 

comprehensive income

Investments                            4.11  Level 3                            4.11 Level 3 3.65                            Level 3

Carrying value Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values. 

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value but fair value disclosures are required :

As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

As at 

April 01, 2016
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50 Financial risk management objectives and policies

a) Market risk

i) Interest rate risk

ii) Commodity rate risk

iii) Foreign currency risk

A) Significant foreign currency risk exposure relating to trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents : ( Amount in Lakhs )

Currency

Amount in

foreign currency
Amount in Indian 

rupees

Amount in

foreign currency
Amount in Indian 

rupees

Amount in

foreign currency
Amount in Indian 

rupees

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (EEFC) EURO                    *   0.00 0.30                                        *   0.00 0.28                                      *   0.00 0.30                         

Trade receivables USD 64.61                     4,018.27              16.06                     1,039.72               8.66                    572.99                     

EURO 23.57                     1,773.50                                   34.54                2,400.81 29.47                  2,204.80                  

* Amount less than thousand

B) Significant foreign currency risk exposure relating to borrowings and trade payables : ( Amount in Lakhs )

Currency

Amount in

foreign currency
Amount in Indian 

rupees

Amount in

foreign currency
Amount in Indian 

rupees

Amount in

foreign currency
Amount in Indian 

rupees

Financial liabilities

Trade payable CAD 0.01                       0.51                     -                         -                        -                      -                           

CHF 0.02                       1.51                     -                         -                        -                      -                           

EURO 7.35                       589.33                                      11.90                   830.21 4.63                    347.33                     

GBP -                         -                       -                         0.72                      0.01                    0.69                         

NZD5 0.01                       0.62                     -                         -                        -                      -                           

TRY                    *   0.00 0.06                     -                         -                        -                      -                           

USD 4.87                       316.85                 1.10                       74.34                    3.69                    244.97                     

Borrowings ( PCFC ) EURO                       26.55 2,128.09              16.29                     1,132.00               8.03                    601.09                     

Borrowings (Buyers credit) USD                         4.38 284.92                 5.70                       368.86                  -                      -                           

EURO                             -   -                       2.72                       188.85                  -                      -                           

* Amount less than thousand

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The

Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency

exchange rates and commodity prices). Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-

term borrowings. The Company is exposed to market risk related to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. Thus, the Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of

borrowing activities, revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

The Company’s foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign currency revenues and expenses and foreign currency borrowings. As a result, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates

relative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s revenues and expenses measured in Indian rupees may decrease or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee

and these foreign currencies have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the Company uses natural hedge by foreign

currency financial liabilities, to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its highly probable forecasted transactions and recognized assets and liabilities.

The Company did not enter into any derivative instruments for hedge or speculation. The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged (before giving effects of natural

hedge) by derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients, including the raw material

components for such active pharmaceutical ingredients. The prices of the Company's raw materials generally are stable. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Company’s

cost of revenues. A large portion of the Company's sales are subject to commodity rate risk having a volatile pricing. The Company monitors overall demand supply position and pricing

movement to decide marketing strategies to overcome risk of changing prices of the products.

The Company has loan facilities on floating interest rate, which exposes the Company to risk of changes in interest rates. The Company monitors the interest rate movement and manages

the interest rate risk by evaluating interest rate swaps etc. based on the market / risk perception.

For the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to its loan and borrowings would increase the

Company's profit by ` 15.02 Lakhs and ` 21.28 Lakhs respectively. A 50 basis point increase in floating interest rate would lead to an equal but opposite effect.

April 01, 2016
March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016


March 31, 2018


March 31, 2018 
March 31, 2017

Particulars

Particulars



C) Foreign currency sensitivity 

b) Credit risk

i) Trade receivables

( ` in Lakhs )

Trade receivables As at March 31, 

2018

As at March 31, 

2017
As at April 1, 2016

Not due                4,904.74               3,053.61                    2,369.35 

1 - 90 days                1,118.40                  561.00                       977.00 

91 -180 days                           -                    285.00                       284.00 

Beyond 180 days                1,869.16               1,152.00                       884.00 

7,892.30               5,051.61             4,514.35                  

ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits

c) Liquidity risk

( ` in Lakhs )

As at March 31, 2018 within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total 

2,703.20               335.00                3,038.20                  

Trade payables 3,885.63               -                      3,885.63                  

Other financial liabilities 1,152.95               -                      1,152.95                  

Total 7,741.78               335.00                8,076.78                  

( ` in Lakhs )

As at March 31, 2017 within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total 

3,693.29               606.46                4,299.75                  

Trade payables 2,708.75               -                      2,708.75                  

Other financial liabilities 267.67                  -                      267.67                     

Total 6,669.71               606.46                                   7,276.17 

( ` in Lakhs )

As at April 01, 2016 within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total 

3,456.18               363.34                3,819.52                  

Trade payables 1,793.10               -                      1,793.10                  

Other financial liabilities 292.40                  -                      292.40                     

Total 5,541.68               363.34                5,905.02                  

51 Capital management

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimisation of debts and equity balance.

The gearing ratio at the end of the year was as follows:  ( ` in Lakhs )

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  April 01, 2016

Debts (Long term and short term borrowings including current maturities of long term borrowings) 3,038.20               4,299.75             3,819.52                  

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 2,122.68               114.49                84.49                       

Net debt 915.52                  4,185.26             3,735.03                  

Total equity 17,266.22             10,053.02           9,045.63                  

Net debt to equity ratio 5% 42% 41%

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with

approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits

are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For this purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss

amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers. The Company evaluates the concentration of

risk with respect to trade receivables which is low, as its customers are widely spread with small outstanding amounts (For detailed movement in provision for trade receivables - Refer note

10)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the

Company's receivables from customers and loans. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of

counterparty to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will

always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. 

i) Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

The Company’s capital management objectives are: 

- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern; and

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the financial statements. The Company’s objective for

capital management is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure.

Borrowings (Including current maturities of long term debt) 

Borrowings (Including current maturities of long term debt) 

Borrowings (Including current maturities of long term debt) 

The Company had unutilised credit limit of  borrowing facilities from banks of ` 1486.99 lakhs as at March 31, 2018, NIL as at March 31, 2017, ` 52.79 lakhs as at April 01, 2016.

For the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31,2017 and April 01, 2016, every 5% strengthening in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and the respective currencies for the above

mentioned financial assets / liabilities would increase the Company’s profit and increase the Company’s total equity by approximately ` 128.23 Lakhs, ` 42.29 Lakhs and ` 79.20 Lakhs

respectively. A 5% weakening of the Indian rupee and the respective currencies would lead to equal but opposite effect. In Management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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52 First-time adoption of Ind AS

1. De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

2. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

3. Investment in equity instrument of subsidiaries

4. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

5. Equity investments at FVTOCI

I.  A. (i) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at March 31, 2017

(ii) Reconciliation of statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

B. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017

II.  Reconciliation of equity as at April 01, 2016 and as at March 31, 2017

IV. Reconciliation of balance sheet as at April 01, 2016 (Trasition date)

The Company has prepared the opening financial statements as per Ind AS as of April 01, 2016 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required

by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying

Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principal is subject to certain exception and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed

below:

III. Adjustments to Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2017

C. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations 

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions availed as applicable and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets recognised as at April 01, 2016

measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind

AS 101:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment in subsidiaries recognised as at April 01, 2016 measured as per the previous

GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of its investment in subsidiaries. 

The Company has applied Appendix C “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” of Ind AS 17 - Leases to determine whether an arrangement existing at the transition

date contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on that date.

The Company has designated investment in equity shares of Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited at FVTOCI on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed at the transition

date.

The Company has applied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2016 (the transition date).
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52 First-time adoption of Ind AS (Cont'd)

Notes
 Regrouped Previous 

GAAP 

Effect of transition to Ind 

AS

 As per Ind AS

balance sheet

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 7,423.48                            (234.68)                             7,188.80                                   

(b) Capital work-in-progress 276.46                               -                                    276.46                                      

(c) Intangible assets 50.12                                 -                                    50.12                                        

(d) Intangible assets under development 142.52                               -                                    142.52                                      

(e) Investments in subsidiaries 184.62                               -                                    184.62                                      

(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments 2 2.00                                   2.11                                   4.11                                          

(ii) Loans 6.26                                   -                                    6.26                                          

(iii) Other financial assets 3 103.13                               (10.13)                               93.00                                        

(g) Non-current tax assets (Net) 6.73                                   -                                    6.73                                          

(h) Other non-current assets 1 and 3 248.63                               231.98                               480.61                                      

Total non-current assets 8,443.95                            (10.72)                               8,433.23                                   

Current assets

(a) Inventories 3,874.59                            -                                    3,874.59                                   

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 4,462.19                            -                                    4,462.19                                   

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 114.49                               -                                    114.49                                      

(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 153.71                               153.71                                      

(iv) Others 3 -                                    1.06                                   1.06                                          

(v) Other financial assets 12.44                                 12.44                                        

(c) Other current assets 1 and 3 870.47                               12.29                                 882.76                                      

Total current assets 9,487.89                            13.35                                 9,501.24                                   

TOTAL ASSETS 17,931.84                          2.63                                   17,934.47                                 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 1,770.45                            -                                    1,770.45                                   

(b) Other equity 1,2,3 and 9 8,269.91                            12.66                                 8,282.57                                   

Total equity 10,040.36                          12.66                                 10,053.02                                 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

   Borrowings 606.46                               -                                    606.46                                      

(b) Provisions 192.45                               -                                    192.45                                      

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2 272.48                               0.42                                   272.90                                      

Total non-current liabilities 1,071.39                            0.42                                   1,071.81                                   

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 3,363.02                            -                                    3,363.02                                   

(ii) Trade payables 2,719.20                            (10.46)                               2,708.75                                   

(iii) Other financial liabilities 597.94                               -                                    597.94                                      

(b) Provisions 33.74                                 -                                    33.74                                        

(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 27.98                                 -                                    27.98                                        

(d) Other current liabilities 78.21                                 -                                    78.21                                        

Total current liabilities 6,820.09                            (10.46)                               6,809.64                                   

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,931.84                          2.63                                   17,934.47                                 

CI. (A) (i) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at March 31, 2017:
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( ` in Lakhs )

Notes
 Regrouped Previous 

GAAP 

Effect of transition to Ind 

AS

Ind AS

Income 

Revenue from operations 8 16,078.40                          -                                    16,078.40                                 

Other income 3 232.36                               1.97                                   234.33                                      

Total Income 16,310.76                          1.97                                   16,312.73                                 

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 8,187.58                            -                                    8,187.58                                   

Purchases of stock-in-trade 22.21                                 -                                    22.21                                        

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (1,377.72)                          -                                    (1,377.72)                                 

Excise duty on sale of goods 8 155.89                               -                                    155.89                                      

Employee benefits expense 4 2,259.36                            (41.70)                               2,217.66                                   

Finance costs 3 362.34                               2.29                                   364.63                                      

Depreciation and amortisation 1 672.41                               (10.83)                               661.58                                      

Other expenses 1 4,799.98                            9.85                                   4,809.83                                   

Total expense 15,082.05                          (40.39)                               15,041.66                                 

Prior period item 9 17.07                                 (17.07)                               -                                           

Profit before tax 1,211.64                            59.43                                 1,271.07                                   

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax [(Refer note 45 (B)] 349.40                               349.40                                      

(2) Deferred tax [(Refer note 45 (C)] 2 and 4 (127.05)                             14.43                                 (112.62)                                    

Total tax expense 222.35                               14.43                                 236.78                                      

Profit for the year 989.29                               45.00                                 1,034.29                                   

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(a)   (i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan (41.70)                                      

(ii) Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plan 14.43                                        

(b)   (i) Net fair value change in investment in equity instruments

           through other comprehensive income 

0.46                                          

(ii) Income tax relating to fair value change in investments in 

     equity instruments through other comprehensive income

(0.09)                                        

Total other comprehensive loss for the year (26.90)                                      

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,007.39                                   

Nature of adjustments Notes For the year ended

31.03.2017

Net Profit as per previous GAAP                                       989.29 

Effect of measurement of financial assets at amortised cost (including unwinding of discount) 3 (0.32)                                        

Prior period adjustments under the previous GAAP 9 17.07                                        

Others 4, 6 and 9 28.25                                        

Net profit as per Ind AS 1,034.29                                   

Other comprehensive expenses (Net of tax) 2 and 4 (26.90)                                      

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 1,007.39                                   

Nature of adjustments Notes As at 

March 31, 2017

As at 

April 01, 2016

Equity as per previous GAAP C I (A) (i) 10,040.36                                                             9,051.07 

Measurement of equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive 

income

2 and 9 1.69                                                                             1.32 

Effect of measurement of financial assets at amortised cost (including 

unwinding of discount)

3

(0.46)                                                                          (0.15)

Prior period adjustments under the previous GAAP 9 10.46                                                                          (6.61)

Others 1 0.97 -                                           

Total adjustment to equity 12.66                                 (5.44)                                        

Equity as per Ind AS 10,053.02                          9,045.63                                   

CI. (A) (ii) Reconciliation of Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2017:

C. I B  Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended  March 31, 2017:

C. II  Reconciliation of equity as at  March 31, 2017 and April 01, 2016 :
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( ` in Lakhs )

Notes Previous GAAP Effect of transition to Ind 

AS

Ind AS

Net cash flows from operating activities 7 943.40                               85.03                                 1,028.43                                   

Net cash flows from investing  activities 7 (1,083.14)                          (85.03)                               (1,168.17)                                 

Net cash flows from financing  activities 5 169.72                               (184.22)                             (14.50)                                      

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 29.98                                 (184.22)                             (154.24)                                    

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5 84.51                                 (1,489.09)                          (1,404.58)                                 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 114.49                               (1,673.31)                          (1,558.82)                                 

For the year ended March 31, 2017

C.III  Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of cash flows for the year ended  March 31, 2017 :
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( ` in Lakhs )

52 First-time adoption of Ind AS (Cont'd)

Notes
 Regrouped 

Previous GAAP 

Effect of transition 

to Ind AS

 As per Ind AS

balance sheet

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 1               6,804.85                 (245.51)                     6,559.34               

(b) Capital work-in-progress 533.37                    -                            533.37                  

(c) Intangible assets 80.48                      -                            80.48                    

(d) Intangible assets under development 3.00                        -                            3.00                      

(e) Investments in subsidiaries 184.62                    -                            184.62                  

(f) Financial assets

       Investments (i) Investments 2               2.00                        1.65                          3.65                      

Loans(ii) Loans 6.26                        -                            6.26                      

(iii) Other financial assets 3               98.41                      (5.83)                         92.59                    

(g) Non-current tax assets (Net) 9               86.47                      (17.07)                       69.40                    

(h) Other non-current assets 1 and 3 253.04                    239.99                      493.03                  

Total non - current assets 8,052.51                 (26.77)                       8,025.74               

Current assets

(a) Inventories 2,483.78                 -                            2,483.78               
(b) Financial assets

Trade receivable(i) Trade receivables 4,338.29                 -                            4,338.29               
Cash and cash equivalents(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 84.49                      -                            84.49                    
Loans(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 68.68                      -                            68.68                    

(iv)  Other financial assets 42.12                      -                            42.12                    
(c) Other current assets 1 and 3 705.54                    11.19                        716.73                  

Total current assets 7,722.90                 11.19                        7,734.09               

TOTAL ASSETS 15,775.40               (15.57)                       15,759.83             

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 1,770.45                 -                            1,770.45               
(b) Other equity 1,2,3 and 9 7,280.62                 (5.44)                         7,275.18               

Total equity 9,051.07                 (5.44)                         9,045.63               

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

   Borrowings 363.34                    -                            363.34                  
(b) Provisions 143.76                    -                            143.76                  
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2               399.53                    0.33                          399.86                  

Total non-current liabilities 906.63                    0.33                          906.96                  

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

Borrowings(i) Borrowings 2,847.21                 -                            2,847.21               
Trade and other payables(ii) Trade payables 1,803.56                 (10.46)                       1,793.10               
Other financial liabilities(iii) Other financial liabilities 901.37                    -                            901.37                  

(b) Provisions 35.18                      -                            35.18                    
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 154.80                    -                            154.80                  
(d) Other current liabilities 75.58                      -                            75.58                    

Total current liabilities 5,817.70                 (10.46)                       5,807.24               

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,775.40               (15.57)                       15,759.83             

C. IV- Reconciliation of balance sheet as at April 01, 2016
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Note 1: Property, plant and equipment

Note 2: Fair valuation of an investment

Note 3: Security deposits 

Note 4: Remeasurements of post employment defined benefit obligation

Note 5: Cash Credit

Note 6: Other comprehensive income

Note 7: Effect of Ind As adoption on statements of cash flows

Note 8: Excise duty

Note 9: Restatement of prior period error

Under the previous GAAP, the Company had included a prior period item relating to interest expense in the determination of profit for the year ended March 31, 2017.

However, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 8 – “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and Ind AS 101 – “First-time Adoption of

Indian Accounting Standards”, the same has been corrected by restating the retained earnings as at April 01, 2016 since the error was pertaining to the period prior to that date.

Corresponding tax impact has been accounted through deferred tax

Notes to reconciliations 

Under the previous GAAP, one time lease premium paid at the inception of the lease arrangement for land was classified as lease hold land under the head 

"Property, plant and equipment". Under Ind AS, since this lease hold arrangement is not meeting the requirements of finance lease as per Ind AS 17- Leases, the same has been

classified as an operating lease. Accordingly, it has been reclassified from property, plant and equipment to unamortised lease premium. The current and non-current portion of

such unamortised lease premium have been disclosed under the heads "Other current assets" and "Other non-current assets". The unamortised lease premium are amortised

equally in the Statement of profit and loss as rent expense over the remaining period of lease.

Under the previous GAAP, an investment in equity instruments was classified as a long -term investment. Long-term investment was carried at cost less provision for other than

temporary decline in the value of such investment. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value change of an investment

in unquoted equity instruments are recognised in other comprehensive income. Corresponding tax impact has been accounted through deferred tax.

Under the previous GAAP, interest free security deposits were recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value.

Accordingly, the Company has fair valued the security deposits under Ind AS. The difference between fair value of security deposits and the carrying value (transaction value)

as per previous GAAP has been recognised as “deferred rent” and disclosed under the heads “Other current assets” and “Other non-current assets”. The amortisation of

deferred rent over the period of lease is charged to the Statement of profit and loss under the head “Finance costs”. The notional interest calculated using effective interest

method on the fair value of security deposits is credited to the Statement of profit and loss under the head “Interest income on other financial assets carried at amortised cost".

Under the previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in Statements of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of

remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset which is recognised in other comprehensive income consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised

in other comprehensive income under Ind AS instead of Statement of profit and loss. Corresponding tax impact has been accounted through deferred tax .

Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented net of excise duty under revenue from operations. Whereas, under Ind AS, revenue from sale of

products includes excise duty. The corresponding excise duty expenses is presented separately on the face of the Statement of profit and loss. The change does not affect total

equity as at April 01, 2016 and March 31, 2017, profit before tax or total profit for the year ended March 31, 2017

Under Ind AS, cash credit which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of Company's cash management system are included in cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of presentation of Statement of cash flows. Under previous GAAP, cash credit were considered as part of borrowings and movements in cash credit were shown as part

of financing activities.

Under previous GAAP, there was no concept of other comprehensive income. Under Ind AS, specified items of income, expense, gains, or losses are required to be presented in

other comprehensive income.

In the financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, movement in margin money deposit balances was forming part of “movement in working capital”. However, under

Ind AS, this movement is being grouped under investing activities.        
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Capitalization of borrowing costs

For the year ended  

March 31, 2018

For the year ended  

March 31, 2017

Finance costs -                                 59.22                               

Total -                                 59.22                               
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For and on behalf of the Board of directors of

 Fermenta Biotech Limited

Sanjay Buch   Satish Varma Krishna Datla

Chairman           Managing Director                Director

Anupama Datla Desai   Gopakumar Nair Amol Lone

Executive Director   Director Chief Financial Officer

Varadvinayak Khambete

Company Secretary 

Thane, May 15, 2018 

During the previous year ended March 31, 2107, the Company had capitalised the following borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital

work-in-progress (CWIP). Consequently, finance costs disclosed under note 33 are net of amounts capitalised by the Company.

Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary to conform with the financial Statements prepared under Ind AS.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 15, 2018.


